ARSI, Exemption No. 825233~
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Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporate Finance

Office of International Cqrporate Finance
Room FomS=stop Sadr %W// N )
Judiciary Plaza < S
450 Fifth Street, N.W.

Washington D.C. 20549

US.A.

Dear Sirs,

Re: CITIC Pacific Limited (“the Company”)

For the purpose of continuing to claim exemption pursuant to Rule 12g 3-2(b) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we hereby furnish to the Commission the
information required by Rule 12g 3-2(b).

Set out in the annexure is a list of information, copies of which are enclosed herewith,
that the Company since August 19, 2004 (i) made or was required to make public
pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong (ii) filed or was required to file with the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) on which the securities of the
Company are traded and which was made public by the HKSE; and (ii1) distributed or
was required to distribute to the holders of the securities of the Company.

Also set forth therein in connection with each item is (i) the date on which the
particular item was or is required to be made public, filed with the HKSE, or
distributed and (i1) the entity requiring that item be made public, filed with the HKSE
or distributed.

Please feel free to contact the undersigned should you have any question concerning

the above.
PROCESSED

0 2004
Yours faithfully, /SEP 3
For and on behalf of THOMSON
CITIC PACIFIC LIMITED FINANCIAL

o 947

Company Secretary

Thank you for your attention.

Encl.
AT/wy/LTR-2310

CITIC PacificlLtd 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: 2820 2111 Fax: 2877 2771 Email: contact@citicpacific.com  Web Site: www.citicpacific.com
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Annexure

CITIC Pacific Limited

List of Information that the Company since August 19, 2004 (i) made or was required
to make public pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong (ii) filed or was required to file

with the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”") on which the securities of
the Company are traded and which was made public by the HKSE: and (iii)
distributed or was required to distribute to the holders of the securities of the

Company

1. Document : Announcement of Interim Results for the Six Months Ended 30 June
2004
Date : August 26, 2004
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the HKSE (“HKSE Listing Rules’))

2. Document : Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
Date : September 6, 2004
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)

3. Document : Interim Report 2004
Date : September 10, 2004 (distribution date)
Entity Requiring Item : HKSE (pursuant to HKSE Listing Rules)
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Anncuncement of Interim Results
for the Six Months Ended 30 June 2004 ¢

CITIC Pacific Limit

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 267)

Chairman’s Business Review

CITIC Pacific rrcorded a net profit of HK$1.363 million in the first six
months of 2004 compared with HK$419 million in the same period last year,
an increase of 225%. The board recommends maintaining the interim

dividend of HK$§0.30.

The main reascns for the increase in profits are that aviation rebounded
from the very depressed level that SARS produced in 2003; strong market
demand for power and special steel products and the improved

contributions from other businesses

In the next few pages, | will describe the operating performances of our
businesses and the progress of our invesiment phan since the 2003 annual
report.

Power Generation

Electricity demand remained high in China so the total amount of power
generated by ous plants increased 219% to 25.2 billion kwh in the fiest six
months of 2004 compared with the same pertod in 2003. Of the total
electricity generated, North United Power, formed in the beginning of the
year, accounted for 5.8 billion kwh, [t also contributed to the power profit

forthe first rime.

CITIC Pacific’s interest in the Ligang Power Station Phase | and I increased
10 65% in the beginning of the year. Construction of 71% owned Ligang
Phase 1T and IV (4XSLIMW ) is progressing on schedulewith commerciai
operation expecied in 2006 and 2007 respectively. Zhengzhou Phase 11
{2x200MW) construction is also proceeding to plan for completion of the
first unit in 2006. Application for approval of the pumped storage facility in
Wuxi (700MW) has been submitted to the relevant authorities. This project

is alsa en important part of our expansion in power.

The substaniialincrease in the price of coal has been widely publicized, as
has the logistical difficulty of securing coal. Coal costs are approximately
65% of the generation costs for power generating companies, so ¢nsuring
sufficient supply and controlling costs has become even more important
than before. Qur power team has worked hard to secure long-term volume
coal supply contracts to ensure coal availability. The Chinese government
suthorized tariff adjustments in the first six months of this year will partially
compensate the power generators for the sharp increase in coal prices. Qur
team of power engineers will continue 1o control costs, imprave efficiency

and to maintain the plants in first class condition,

Speclal Steel Manufacturing

fiangyin Steel Mill had an excellent first half because of strong demand for its
speciul nteels and the sharp Increase in steel prices In the first quarter. Profits
rose mote than 172% compared with the same period last year. We belicve
that the production wnd sales of special steel products will remain stable in
the second half of the year,

“The scquisition of Daye Stee} announced by the Company earlier in the year
i in progress and pending approvel from the relevant suthorities.
Communications

CITIC Pacific’s communications businesses improved their contributions

compared with 2303 due mainly to improved performance at CITI‘C Telecom

1616 and our [nternet games business, which did not exist in the fiest half of
2003. The game Legend of Mir3 has, in 2 short time, become a very popular
game in China with an average of 240,000 people playing simultaneously at
any one time, New games are currenty being tested. During the Athens
Olympic Games, our joint venture with the All-China Sports Federation and
the Chinese Olympic Committee offered over the Internet special interest

services cavering the Games from a Chinese perspective,

Aviation

All parts of our aviation business were buoyant in the first half of 2004 in
marked contrast to a year earlier. Passengers returned in great numbers and
both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair have regularly broken records for the

number of passengers carried. The volume of cargo was also excellent,

Cathay Pacific achieved a profit of HK$1,771 milfion and Dragonair
HKS$175 million compared with losses in 2003. Cathay Pacific launched a
daily non-stop flight to New York and began a code-share service to Moscow

with Aeroflot, and Dragonair to Tokyo.

It is of concern that the significant higher oil price has raised fuel costs for
both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair. But both airlines have levied fuel
surcharges on both passenger tickets and freight rates and continue to find

ways to control costs without adversely affecting safety or service.

Our Air China Cargo joint venture began its operation in Janvary and has

been prefitable with 302,000 tonaex of caryn carried in the first six months.

HACTL achieved & 16.4% growth in tonnage handled compared with the
same period of 2003 o reach 1,069,968 tonnes boosted by strong exports in

particular to Europe,

Marketing and Distribution
The profit contribution from Marketing and Distribution increased by 13%
\argely due to solid performance on the trading side and a rebound of the

motor business in Hong Kong from its low last year.

Motor: In Hong Kang, DCH’s sales of commercial vehictes increased 23%
while passenger car sales rose 9%, {n mainland China, the sales of
commercial vehicles could not repeat the particularly good performance in
2003 while sales of passenger vehicles increased slightly due to the
continuous growth in domestically manufactured vehicles. The volume of
imported vehicles is likely to be still lower in the next six months, 25 many
purchasers may swait the abolition of the import quota system in January
2005. As the half-year progressed, the tightenir:g of the availability of credit
hed an increasingly negative effect on both imported and domestic
manufactured vehicle sales. In the long-term, we remain confident in the
growth potential of the Mainland motor market as evidenced by the new
vehidle industry policy released by the Chinese government in fune which set

2 s0lid foundation for the future development of this industry.

Trading: Thanks to an improved economic environment and the

d

8¢ s effortat ing product sourcing and
diversity, the trading business in Hong Kong improved significandy
compared with the same period a year ago. The increasing number of

Mainland tourists to Hong Kong has brought encouraging results to our

Shiseido joint venture in particular. Performance of DCH China remains
strong. Sims' profit improved significantly due to the good performance in
its logistics operation and the new businesses it genceated especially in the

mainland.

Property

Activity in the Hong Kong property market has picked up -as evidenced by
the good response to the re-lsunch sale of Discovery Bay's Siena Two where
128 units were sold in the month of fuly alone and as of today, 96% of the
units available have been sold. Construction work for Phase 13, comprising
approximately 56¢ apartments, commenced in May, Festival Walk cnmi:nna
to be one of the most attractive shopping centres in Hong Kong with full

occupancy and rising revenue.

In maintand Ching, the New Westgate Garden residential project in Shanghai
began the pre-sale of 265 flats on August 18. Market response was
overwhelming.

We remain confident in the long-term prospects of the property markets in

mainland Chenia and continue to seek land at ateractive prices.

Finance

CITIC Pacific’s financial position remains very strong, [n March, s HK$5.2
billion long-term syndicated loan facility was signed. Az the end of June
CITIC Pacific had HK$10.7 billion in cash, deposits and available comnitted
{acilities. The Group has ample financial resources to suppart our future

expansion plans.

Looking to the Future ,
CITIC Pacific remains committed to our diversified business strucoure and
the China markets. Step-by-step progress is being made in implementing our
expansion plans, Although the macro economic measures taken by the ’
Chinese government will put certain consiraints on some companies and
projects, CITIC Pacific's major projects in power, special steel and
communications all have tong-term growth potential. Stable cashfow and a
solid financial position will allow us to take advantage of good investment
opportunities, especially when credit is tight in the present market We
believe that the growth and futuee of CITIC Pacific very much depends on
the prosperity and growth in maintand China, and in that we have ful.!‘

confidence.

On behalf of all the directors, [ would like to express my gratitude to all the
staff 2t CITIC Pacific for their unwavering support, commitment and hard
work, without which our progress would not be possible.

Larry Yung Chi Kip
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 August 2004
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Consolidated Pr)’oﬁt and Loss Account

2 Turnover and segment information
An analysis of the Group's turnover and profit from consolidated activities before

3 The profit from consalidated activities is arrived at after crediting and charging:
Six months endsed

cash and deposit baJunces in variows currencies a3 of 30 fune 2004 were summarised as

Toomnaion S B | Pemas Yo E Toul
HKS mion Equivasent
Borrowings n

ongual 7485 | 4482 555 | 577 201 | 12,880
Bormowings afier

Currency Swaps, 8933 | 25 585 | 537 201 | 12,880
Cath ang Daposis 394 | 1867 81| 23 22 | 23150
Net Borrowings

{Casnyafter Swaps | 8,539 927 @] 341 179 | w0

CITIC Pacil employs 2 combination of financial instruments, including derivative

products, to manege it= exposure to fluctuations in inlerest and currency rates.

‘The Compurly uses tnlerest rate swaps. forward rate agreensents and interess rate option

coniracts to hedge exposures or (o modify the interest rate characteristics of its

borrowings, As of 30 June 2004, the Comy &an{,h‘d outstanding interest rate swlﬂfé)lkon

cantracty mlh 4 notioral amount of HK! illion. Afier the swaps, effectively HK$9.0

Sllion o7 20% of the Grough totsl borrowings were peying fotting raue and e

remaining were effectiv ely paying fized rate of interest

The overall weighted sverage all-in cost of debs (including (ees and hed& costs) for

the six manths ended 30 June 2004 was abour 3.4%, compared with 4.6 B the 1ame

period last year.

The underlying cash flow of the Group’s bsinesses are mainly in HK dollars orin

Renminbi. 1o minimise potential US dollar debt and imerest exposures, the Compeny

entered into foreign exchange swap, forward and opion conirac. X 0t 30 June 1004,

such contracts sutstanding amounted to US§S70 mil

The Company tlso entered into Renminbi Non Dzlmnble Forward or known as "NDF"

conirats bt purpose ofh«f g the projected dividend receivable from various projects

xn the mainland s are originally denominated in Renminbi and required
0 be converted to USD at time of the payment. As of 30 June 2004, totel ouuundmg

Nl)b contructs pmountsd to USS35 million.

Based on the Compeny’s calculation and/or the mark to market price quatation ablained

from major financial insticutions, the ;gfrcpu fair value of 1l the outstandin,

derivative Lransactions a3 st 30 hune 2004 was approximately « positive value of HKS$17

million,
Av1 0 June 2004 sase of HKS79 milion were pl«:ﬁd to secure banking fucllltles
utitised by subs . malnly related to Dah Chong Hong's trading business overseas.

Avaltable Soumea of Financ!

A of 30 June 2004, the Group's undrawn available facilities consists of HK$7.5 billion in
commitied long term loans and HK$1.$ bﬂlmn olmomy ket lines, In addition,
availabie irade facitities amounied 10 HK$1.S

net finance charges and share of prafiis less losses before taxation of joindy 30 Ane
Six months ended controlled entities and associated companies by ptincipal aclivities are as iollows: in HKS mition 2004
30 ung A income from investments 214 1
2006 & 2003 owsd Pkl Net gain from Investmants - 323
"1 HKS o Note  Unaudited Unaydited : Folim oy tmed Cost of inventories sokd 850 6,565
i S 0P 0TS X e 200 Coexems  Covoed  Asom o Syt Sapm galnon and t:fo“:msalm 362 29?
don Comres Jrosey amontisal
Turnover 10672 15605 % e | e b ki i
Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 1,075 1,025 owa & . " . 7 R ” :{;";lef;n:‘?gocnl’;uges inctuded interest expense of HK$163 million (2003:
f Profi 8! g ke ® 3 - i
Sharfa of Profits Less Lol ses of preding N 8 76 s - s5| 5 HongKong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) an the estimated
Jointly Controfled Entities 170 148 O] i Sz’ 219 . ® % - ig assessable profit for the period. Overseas taxation is calculated on the estimated
" . Spacidl - T - assessable profit for the period at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries
Associated Companies 730 (238)  Masting & Distibwtion a% ﬁ " “: g; ﬁ;l g in which the Group operates. Tax provisions are reviewed regularly to take into
Net Finance Charges 4 . (10) (184) P et 2 P - s . g | 2ccount changes in legislation, practice and status of negotiations. Detailed as
Less: Ganaral & follows:
Protit before Taxatian 1, 7. i
b 865 50 Koo . ) A - . - S months ended
Taxation 5 284} 219} 30hne
O s m ™ - g | P HKSmin 2004 2003
Profit after Taxation 1,561 531 Mt Finenoa Chirges w) Compeny and subsiciary companies
- . eaton Hong Kong 1ax 61 53
Minority interests (218) (112) ! 1 Ovarsacs st & Y
Prosi afr Taiztion 158 Deforrad taxation @ 9
Peofit Attributable to Sharsholders 1,383 419 Jolagyw controdled entiies 1 0
Snd 9 Kong profits
Dividends 6 mhim Smo Ovarseas taxation 16 21
uemd  olsles Dsforred taxation [ 3
Interim Dividend Proposed (657) (657) Pk s bty Lmwsd Associatad companies
- S onf ks . 200 Cmdgzd Gk A Gwp el Sge Hong Kong profits tax 61 28
Eamings per Share (HKS) 7 nsokn Woa | Asee  Gos o W A Pk 1axaton 2 28
[ Detarred taxation 28 28
Basic 0.622 G181 pronoun 284 218
Dilated Fowar Gererzion 138 31 1% - W7 - 7
ilute 0.622 N/A m n? 2 sE Mg, ‘:g) - ‘gl 6 Oividends
Dividend per Share (HK$) sw*ggm %; = a * m N % S morta ended
Interim 0.30 0.30  Maating 4 Distixion 5,;2 ‘wg; 9 a; ;g ggl g in MK mitlon
Oty % % 3 . n - 7| 2003 final dividena pald: HK$0 70
Lass: ol & {2002: HKS0.70) per share 1,532 1,532
Notes: Adraisyaton - -
Expenses R (1651 . . e8] _ 155y 2002 Special dividend pald: HK$1.00 per share - 2,188
T 2004 Interim dividend proposed: HK$0.30 -
1 Significant aceaunting policies L L 01 2003 HK$D.30) per srere 857 657
Ket Frarca Chapes - {164
Teuzion @8 7 The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit antributable t
These condensed unaudited consolidated interim accounts {“the Accounss™) are g K] shareholders of HK$1,363 ngull?:n (2003 : HK$415 r:iﬂion.) o
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statement of Standard A iy i ) i :
ce [SSAP®) No. 25 “tterim Financi o An analysis of the Group's tusnover by geagraphical area is as follows: ¢ basic carnings per share is based on the weighted average number of
Practice [*$5AP") Mo, 25 lmerlm:nanm] Reporting Ls!sued by the Hong Kang P! ¥ geograpl o e eniod 2,185,998,627 sharen i issve during the period (100%: 2,185,460, 160 theres in
Society of Accountants and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of The Stock 30 dune issue), The diluted earnings per share is based on'2,191,263,820 shares which it
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. in HKS mition 2004 2000 the weighted sverage number of shares in issue during the period plus the
By googrepnical area weighted average number of 1,285,198 shares deemed to be issued st no
. . . Hong Kong 3,849 3,885 consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised {2003 No difuted
The Accuunts should be read (n conjunction with the 2003 annual accounts. Maintand China 61589 11513 carnings per share is presented as the exercise of all the optians outstaoding
gg:ns . :Z‘Sg &gg during the period has no dilutive effect an the earnings per share).
The accounting policies used in the preparation of the Accounts are consistent Ty e 8C ive figures have been adjusted to conform with the current
with thoss used in the annual sccounts for the year ended 31 December 2003, : : p i .
Financial Review and Analysis Mty Proe o Outsanding Dt . . The At Commie s coniid o v independenron e i Mo
i e Group actively manages and extends its debt maturity profile 1o ensure that Alexander Reid Hamilton (Chairman) snd Hansen Loh Chung Hon and one aon-
Efgl;aull-l"qzwlfg’ g[’;g ?&F;f’ﬂﬂfjgﬂ“ﬁfsﬂ HK$129 billon (31 Group's maturing debt i year witl not exceed the anticipated cash o and the executive direcior, Mr Wiltie Chang, e Committee ncrmbers possess diversfed
Derabor 2005 S04 biliom.cash 100 oot i ban ste Wi b]”m Group's ability to refinance the debt in that year: industriat and professional experience including that of accounting and fnance,
iving a ot debt of H1$9.7 billion compared o HKS5 billion at 31 Dece [ o T aw m xe e The interim Accounts, which are prepared in accordance with SSAP 25 “Interim
erage, messured by the net debtto tral capital, s 20% 31 December zoo3 1 m) Pooriap  Financial Reporting”, have been reviewed by the Company's independent auditors
The increase in net debt was mainly due to the new investments in power plants, air Parenl Company {1} 184 0 1880 287 2965 31510 1.5 % Pn:ewmrhou:e(:oopeu in accordance with the Auditing Standard SAS 700
urga, spevial steet manufacturing and residential property development. Susaks T3 W W I 3 0155 12% ements To Review Interim Finencis} Htporu'u« t that the scope did not
The denamination of the Graugfs borrawings befare 1nd after curtency owaps 3 well as [repeere ER T T R T R T R ) me ta the results of the listed associsted company, Cathay PaciBic Alrways Limited. -

Parcariage % S 16w 2% 2% % 00K
M inchating & USS450 millon global bond which was issusd by & wholy owned spacial
Purpases vehicle,

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities
As al 30 June 2004, the Group's contracted capitat commitments were HK$4.8 billion
and the Group' contingent fiabilities had not changed significandy from the lsst year

end.

Human Resources

The headcoent of the Group increased by 3.6%, from 12,174 at the end of December
2003 to 12,611 3t the end of June 2004. The number of employees in the mainlang
reached 2 new high of 8,376 as the Group confinues to siep up its development and
investment in China, The headcount in Hong Kong and the rest of the world remaina
stable 3 4,000 and 235 respectively. The total staff cost for the six months ended 30 June
2004 was HK$676 million.

As reported previously, the efficiency enhancement messures undertakea by the Group
in the Last few years have brought new focus on cost management and performance
schievement. With the recovery of trading conditions in the region after the SARS.
outbreak, the Group is aware of the renewed demand on manpower in several industries
and is reacting appropristely:

CITIC Pacific is committed fo providing s healthy organizational enviropment for
individual's development. With the ever growing cross-border business sctivities
betwern Hong Kong and the minland, the Group encourages and is sctively promoting
business integration, knowledge shasing and skﬂﬁ transfet between safl in the two

The Company hus sdopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directon of
Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Heving made specific
enquiry. all Directars have complied with the required xandard set out in the Model
Code throughout the six months ended 30 june 2004.

Throughout the period, the Company was in compliance with the Code of Best Practicé
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Dividend and Clasure of Register

‘The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 (2003: HK$0.30) per share
for the year ending 31 December 2004 piyable on Wednesdsy, 22 September 2004 to
shareholders whose names appear on ‘fe Register of Members of the Company on
Friday, 17 September 2004, The Register of Members of the Company will be closed «
from Monday, 13 Sepiember 2004 (o Friday, 17 September 2004, both days indhusive,
during which period 0o share transfer will be effected. In order to qualify for the interim
dividend, a!] transfers, accampanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Compsny's Share Registrars, Tengis Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Cenire, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not -
Later then 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 10 September 2004.

Share Capital

The Company has not redeemed uny of its shares during the period, Neither the
Company nor eny of its subsidiary compsnies has purchased or sold 12y of the
Company’s shares during the period.

Forward Looking Statements

territaries. ln addition to providing job-related training and
aimed st hetping employees i unprove wnrkfedormm:z and preplnng for future
develapment, the Group also organizes and encourages staff lo participste in wellness/
fitness activities that are conducive to good health and well-being.

In the latter half of every year, CITIC Pacific conducts teviews on the terms and
conditions of emplayment to ensure that the pverall compensation and benefits offered
<o st sre intermally equitable and externally compatible with major employers. Markes
data, aloag with indusiry practices 1nd emerging trends, are taken into consideration
when formuhunﬁ related stafl programmes. The Group will wmmue 10 ensure thatits

forward looking statements with respect to U
ancul condition, results of operations and business of the Group. These forward
looking statements represent the Company’s expectations o beheﬁ concerning furure
events and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainty tha could cause actual
results, performance of events ta differ macerially from those expressed of implied in
such statements,

Interim Report and Further Information
Acopy of the announcementw will be found on the Company's websdte

compensation policies are refiective of Individual No mugjor

human resource management policy or procedure has been executed in the last 6
months.

CITIC Pacific and its suff continues to support charitable work and the promotion of
tduuuﬂn environmental protection, sports, culture and the arts by sponsorship snd

the § En:hmsu wbaiu (wirwhkex.com.hk), Th
.dd.ltlcnll Iaformation in Interim Report incl full finencid snatysts will bc
posted on the Company'’s webiite &3 s00n s pouibla The full Interim l:pon contintag
all the information required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchangs will be made
wvailable on the website of the Company and the Stock ok Bachangs erdund 3 Septeber
2004 and sent to thareholders on 10 September 2004,

rticipation in cetated agtivities ln Hang Kang, the malnland end averieas countries. Onter of the Bourd
Tow Avstavie Corporate Governance By Order of e bo
XS reon Faciies  Outstardings Faciias Alice Tho Mun Wi, Campary Secretary
CITIC Pacific is committed 10 excellent standerds of corporate governance and a full Hong Kong, 26 August 2004
Commined Factios description of the operstion of the Board, Systerm of [nternal Cantrol, Audit Committee, '8 Kong, 26 Augu _
Bank Loans. 15,488 7,078 7510 Remunerstion Commitiee, Codes and financial reporting may be found on page 55 of As 1 the date of this announcement, the Board of Directors of the Company
ww 3'?;8 35‘ g the 2003 Annual Report. comprises Measrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling, Vernon Prancis
16 Pracermar The Board currently comprises ten executve and six non-executlve diréciors of ¥hom Maoore, Peter Lee Chung Hing, Norman Yuen Kee Tong, Yao Jinrong, Chang
Total Comenitted 19,778 |2,25€ 7510 fourare’ mdzpend:m’undeﬂhckuk:(bvunms;h: Listing of Securities on The Stock Zhenming, Li Shilin, Carl Yung Ming Jie, Liu Tifu, Wiltie Chang®, Hamilton Ho

Orocmmitied Facitios Exchange of Hong Kong Limiied (the Listing Hau Hay**, Alexander Reid Hamilion®*, Hansen Lob Chung Hon®*, Norman Ho

Markal 2.051 587 11484 The Audit Commiltes has reviewed the Interim Report with ma: Hau Chong** and André Desmarals®.
Trace Facities 2.600 885 1841 Companys Internaj end external auditors und tecommended mmw tion by au Bowd  + NenwcutviDiwcsor  ** IadependentNoo-cescutive Director
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svauiiniily A[LUrn Ua viovemant ol Lusied quily occutriues
For the month ended 31st August, 2004

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited o
CC: The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From : CITIC Pacific Limited

(Name of Company)

Alice Tso Mun Wai

TelNo.  2820-2111

(Name of Responsible Official)

Date - 6th September, 2004

1. Ordinary shares :

(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Sccuritics :
(please tick wherever applicable)

2. Preference shares :

¥ Other classes of sharcs : please specify shares
4. Warrants : plcase specify :
_
(B} Movement in Authorised Share Capital:
No. of msdisaax shares/
PRI KRR EHK Par Value Authorised Share Capital
oiher elnssosof shares —(HKS$) (HK$)
Balance at close
ofpreccding month 3,000, 000,000 0.40 1,200,000,000
Increase/(Deérease)
(EGM approval date): —_— _— —
)
Balance at close 3,000,000,000 0.40 1,200,000,000
Of lhc month e 1 ———— T ) ———
(C) Movement in Issued Share Capital:
Na. of No. of Preference No. of other
shares classes of shares

Balance at close
of preceding month:

Increase/(Decrease)
during the month

Balance at close
of the month :

Qxdrarxe shares

2,190,110,160

2,190,110,160

.in
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cal.

* please delete and insert *N/A® whercver inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES IN MOVEMENT DURING SECURITIES IN |IN NO. OF lew'j
SECURITIES ISSUE AT CLOSE THE MONTH ISSUE AT SHARES ARISING
OF PRECEDING CLOSE OF THE |THEREFROM
MONTH MONTH
SHARE OPTIONS* No. of Options Granted |Exercised| Cancelled | No. of Options
Type
CITIC Pacific
1. Brare, hBgertite 9 900,000 -~ — - 9,900,000 Nil
Exercise pace:
HKS l8 - 20 .
2.
Exercise price:
HKS
WARRANTS® Nontinal Value | * Excrcised Nominal Value
Date of Expiry /2 (HKS) (HKS) (HKS$)
1.
Subscription price:
HKS
2.
Subscription price:
HKS
CONVERTIBLES* Converied
Class  N/a Units (Units) Units
Convertible price:
HKS
OTHER ISSUES OF
SHARES* N/A
Rights Issue Price : Issuc and allotment Date :
Placing Price : [ssuc and allotment Date:
Bonus Issue Issue and allotiient Date:
Scrip Dividend Issuc and allotinent Date :
Repurchase of share Canccllation Date :
Redemption of share Redemiplion Datc :
Consideration issue | Price: Issuc and allotment Date :
Others Price: Issue and allotmeat Date :
(pleasc specify)
Total No. of ordinary shares/preference shares/other classes of shares Nil
incrcased/(decreased) during the month: ====
Authorised Signatory:
Remarks :
k-
Name: Alice Tsd Mun Wai
Tille : Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this fonm nay be reproduced and provided to other infoamation vendors or users of market

data at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the companyvfissucr.
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Business at a Glance cine paisics primary

focus is on providing basic infrastructure - power generation, communications,

aviation and civil infrastructure - in Hong Kong and mainland China. The

Company also manufactures special steel, distributes motor vehicles and

consumer products, and invests in and develops property.

Based in Hong Kong with a deep knowledge of China, CITIC Pacific consists
of sound businesses that produce good cash flows, with the potential to grow.

Our finance is well-structured and we have a tradition of operating with
excellent standards of corporate governance.

L Trust, Reliability and Confidence.
T
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Power Generation CITIC Pacific builds, owns and operates power plants in
mainland China. Current total installed capacity in the power stations in which
we have an interest is 7,100MW and another 3,720MW is under construction.

Communications CITIC Pacific runs one of the largest game hosting
platforms in China and with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee promotes sports through e-platforms. CITIC Telecom 1616
is the leading 1pp wholesaler in Asia, cpcnet offers data services to customers
throughout Greater China, CITIC Guoan operates cable Tv networks in
mainland China and cTMm is Macau’s communications provider of choice.

Aviation CITIC Pacific is a key participant in the aviation sector through
Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon Airlines, air cargo provider HacTL
and Air China Cargo.

Civil Infrastructure CITIC Pacific is either an owner or involved in the
management of all three of Hong Kong harbour crossings - vital facilities that
connect Hong Kong Island to Kowloon.

Y Special Stee! Manufacturing

Jiangyin steel plant is one of China’s leading manufacturers of special steels
such as bearing and gear steel.

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading serve the people of Hong Kong and other
parts of China by distributing an array of motor vehicles, consumer and food
commodities, branded food, and household products.

Alone or with partners, CITIC Pacific develops, manages and owns properties
including Hong Kong’s CITIC Tower, Festival Walk, Discovery Bay, and
Shanghai’s New Westgate Garden, CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion,

CITiC Capital Markets Holdings, bio-pharmaceutical research and distance
learning are all developing businesses of the CITIC Pacific Group.
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Financial Highlights

2004 2003
BERAZTRLEAER

LB EBETTHE in HK$ million Six months ended 30 June

REEMGRR Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,363 419
TEERHATAZHRNER Major Businesses’ Contribution
HE Power Generation 208 149
=RE Communications 111 112
e Aviation 549 (382)
EREE Civil Infrastructure 161 443
BEBEE Special Steel Manufacturing 207 76
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 146 129
/ES Property 267 239
FEYR R ER Cash Contributed from all Businesses 1,390 1,370
~A=+8 +=A=+-A8
itH e
As at As at
HENBEBITHE in HK$ miflion 30 June 31 December
BE4EHA Capital Employed 51,643 49,354
BRES Shareholder’s Funds 38,783 38,826
=Rig L Net Debt 9,710 5017
MARAZER Available Loan Facilities 8,974 6,368
BEAA=+BIEAEA

LERITTHE in HK$ Six months ended 30 June
SERAEN Earnings per Share 0.62 0.19
BERES Dividends per Share 0.30 0.30
laIga Staff 12,611 11,629

BRERALNESA

Please see page 51 for definitions of terms used
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Chairman’s Business Review
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CITIC Pacific recorded a net profit of HK$1,363 million in the first six
months of 2004 compared with HK$419 million in the same period last
year, an increase of 225%. The board recommends maintaining the interim
dividend of HK$0.30.

The main reasons for the increase in profits are that aviation rebounded
from the very depressed level that sars produced in 2003; strong market
demand for power and special steel products and the improved

contributions from other businesses.

In the next few pages, I will describe the operating performance of our

businesses and the progress of our investment plan since the 2003 annual report.

Power Generation

Electricity demand remained high in China so the total amount of power
generated by our plants increased 219% to 25.2 billion KWH in the first
six months of 2004 compared with the same period in 2003. Of the total
electricity generated, North United Power, formed in the beginning of the
year, accounted for 15.8 billion KWH. It also contributed to the power
profit for the first time. |

CITIC Pacific’s interest in the Ligang Power Station Phase I and II
increased to 65% in the beginning of the year. Construction of 71% owned
Ligang Phase IIT and IV (4x600MW) is progressing on schedule with
commercial operation expected in 2006 and 2007 respectively. Zhengzhou
Phase IIT (2x200MW) construction is also proceeding to plan for
completion of the first unit in 2006. Application for approval of the
pumped storage facility in Wuxi (700MW) has been submitted to the
relevant authorities. This project is also an important part of our

expansion in power.

The substantial increase in the price of coal has been widely publicized, as
has the logistical difficulty of securing coal. Coal costs are approximately
65% of the generation costs for power generating companies, so ensuring
sufficient supply and controlling costs has become even more important

than before. Our power team has worked hard to secure long-term volume
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coal supply contracts to ensure coal availability. The Chinese government
authorised tariff adjustments in the first six months of this year will
partially compensate the power generators for the sharp increase in coal
prices. Our team of power engineers will continue to control costs,

improve efficiency and to maintain the plants in first class condition.

Special Steel Manufacturing

Jiangyin Steel Mill had an excellent first half because of strong demand for
its special steels and the sharp increase in steel prices in the first quarter.
Profits rose more than 172% compared with the same period last year.

We believe that the production and sales of special steel products will

remain stable in the second half of the year.

The acquisition of Daye Steel announced by the Company earlier in the

year is in progress and pending approval from the relevant authorities.

Communications

CITIC Pacific’s communications businesses improved their contribution
compared with 2003 due mainly to improved performance at CITIC
Telecom 1616 and our Internet games business, which did not exist in the
first half of 2003. The game Legend of Mir3 has, in a short time, become a
very popular game in China with an average of 240,000 people playing
simultaneously at any one time. New games are currently being tested.
During the Athens Olympic Games, our joint venture with the All-China
Sports Federation and the Chinese Olympic Committee offered over the
Internet special interest services covering the Games from a Chinese

perspective.

Aviation

All parts of our aviation business were buoyant in the first half of 2004 in -
marked contrast to a year earlier. Passengers returned in great numbers
and both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair have regularly broken records for

the number of passengers carried. The volume of cargo was also excellent.
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Cathay Pacific achieved a profit of HK$1,771 million and Dragonair
HK$175 million compared with losses in 2003. Cathay Pacific launched a
daily non-stop flight to New York and began a code-share service to

Moscow with Aeroflot, and Dragonair to Tokyo.

It is of concern that the significant higher oil price has raised fuel costs
for both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair. But both airlines have levied fuel
surcharges on both passenger tickets and freight rates and continue to find

ways to control costs without adversely affecting safety or service.

Our Air China Cargo joint venture began its operation in January and has

been profitable with 302,000 tonnes of cargo carried in the first six months.

HACTL achieved a 16.4% growth in tonnage handled compared with the
same period of 2003 to reach 1,069,968 tonnes boosted by strong exports

in particular to Europe.

Marketing and Distribution
The profit contribution from Marketing and Distribution increased by 13%
largely due to solid performance on the trading side and a rebound of the

motor business in Hong Kong from its low last year.

Motor: In Hong Kong, DCH’s sales of commercial vehicles increased 23%
while passenger car sales rose 9%. In mainland China, the sales of
commercial vehicles could not repeat the particularly good performance
in 2003 while sales of passenger vehicles increased slightly due to the
continuous growth in domestically manufactured vehicles. The volume of
imported vehicles is likely to be still lower in the next six months, as many
purchasers may await the abolition of the import quota system in January
2005. As the half-year progressed, the tightening of the availability of
credit had an increasingly negative effect on both imported and domestic
manufactured vehicle sales. In the long-term, we remain confident in the
growth potential of the Mainland motor market as evidenced by the new
vehicle industry policy released by the Chinese government in June which

set a solid foundation for the future development of this industry.
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Trading: Thanks to an improved economic environment and the
management’s effort at continuously expanding product sourcing and
diversity, the trading business in Hong Kong improved significantly
compared with the same period a vear ago. The increasing number of
Mainland tourists to Hong Kong has brought encouraging results to our
Shiseido joint venture in particular. Performance of pcH China remains
strong. Sims’ profit improved significantly due to the good performance in
its logistics operation and the new businesses it generated especially in the

mainland.

Property
Activity in the Hong Kong property market has picked up as evidenced by
the good response to the re-launch sale of Discovery Bay’s Siena Two .
where 128 units were sold in the month of July alone and as of today, 96%
of the units available have been sold. Construction work for Phase 13,
comprising approximately 560 apartments, commenced in May. Festival
Walk continues to be one of the most attractive shopping centres in

Hong Kong with full occupancy and rising revenue.

In mainland China, the New Westgate Garden residential project in
Shanghai began the pre-sale of 265 flats on August 18. Market response

was overwhelming.

We remain confident in the long-term prospects of the property markets

in mainland China and continue to seek land at attractive prices.

Finance

CITIC Pacific’s financial position remains very strong. In March, a HK$5.2
billion long-term syndicated loan facility was signed. At the end of June
CITIC Pacific had HK$10.7 billion in cash, deposits and available
committed facilities. The Group has ample financial resources to support

our future expansion plans.
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Locking to the Future

CITIC Pacific remains committed to our diversified business structure and
the China markets. Step-by-step progress is being made in implementing
our expansion plans. Although the macro economic measures taken by the
Chinese government will put certain constraints on some companies and
projects, CITIC Pacific’s major projects in power, special steel and
comimunications all have long-term growth potential. Stable cashflow and
a solid financial position will allow us to take advantage of good
investment opportunities, especially when credit is tight in the present
market. We believe that the growth and future of CITIC Pacific very much
depends on the prosperity and growth in mainland China, and in that we

have full confidence.

On behalf of all the directors, I would like to express my gratitude to all
the staff at CITIC Pacific for their unwavering support, commitment and

hard work, without which our progress would not be possible.

Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 August 2004
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of the Consolidated Financial Results
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

Introduction -

CITIC Pacific’s 2004 Interim Report includes a letter from the Chairman
to shareholders, the interim accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Financial Review is designed to assist the reader in understanding
the statutory information by discussing the contribution of each business

segment, and the financial position of the company as a whole.

Pages 30 to 34 of the Interim Report contain the Consolidated Profit and
Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity. Following these financial statements, on pages 35 to 41
of the Interim Report, are Notes that further explain certain figures

presented in the statements.

On page 42 is the report of CITIC Pacific’s auditor - PricewaterhouseCoopers -

of their independent review of CITIC Pacific’s Interim Report.

Basis of Accounting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly follow

International Accounting Standards.




B 3B 14 i # Profit Attributable to Shareholders
BEZEZWNEANA=Z+ALEANEAZKRE The net profit attributable to shareholders for the six months ended 30 June
BAERFBEFET=ZBAT=Z%T - B 2004 was HK$1,363 million, an increase of 225% compared with HK$419
“EFZFRZEWNE-TALAEETLEMA  million achieved in 2003. The reasons for the increase in profit are

225% c W EFZFEFERTX - described below.
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EEBEoEEMNER Business Segments Contribution
EIREXEQA_TTWNFEAMAZE  The contribution made by major business units in the first six months of
FIER BoZTZFRHMERNT 2004, compared with the same period of 2003, were:
AR B Contribution
BEEET HKS$ milfion 1-6/2004 1-6/2003 2004 - 2003
5E Power Generation 208 149 59
ZERE Communications 111 112 1
iz Aviation 543 (382) 931
. ERERREE Civil Infrastructure 161 443 (282)
REEE Special Steel Manufacturing 207 76 131
HERDHE Marketing & Distribution 146 129 17
W Property 267 239 28
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Compared with the contribution for the six months ended 30 June 2003:

o Power Generation: the increased demand for electricity and a first
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contribution from North United Power resulted in higher contribution.

o Communications: CITIC Telecom 1616’s contribution increased due to
improved margins. Operating results at CTM was weaker than in 2003,
while CITIC Guoan was relative stable and other business invested in

new products and services.

o

Aviation: the market for passenger travel was buoyant in the first half
of 2004 in a contrast to the previous year when SARS caused a dramatic

reduction in passenger traffic.

]

Civil Infrastructure: the tunnels in Hong Kong increased their
contribution 17% and the overall decrease was due to the sale of

bridges, tunnels and a road in Shanghai in the first half of 2003.

o

Special Steel Manufacturing: significantly higher margins were achieved

in 2004 due to a considerable increase in the demand for steel.

(=]

Marketing & Distribution: the non-motor trading business of pcH and
s1Ms had much improved results in both the Hong Kong and mainland
markets. The motor business remained highly competitive in all markets,
DCH sold 14% more vehicles in Hong Kong, while sales in the mainland
were flat. Profits improved in Hong Kong particularly due to commercial
vehicle and catalytic converter sales and motor leasing but were lower in

the mainland due to a change in product mix.

-]

Property: income from rental properties rose in both Hong Kong and
Shanghai.
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Pages 36 and 37 of the Interim Report contains business segment
information for turnover and profit before net finance charges and
taxation for consolidated activities, jointly controlled entities and

associated companies.

Geographical Distribution

The division of contribution and assets between Hong Kong, mainland
China and overseas is shown below based on the location of the base of
each business’s operations. There was a decline for the amount contributed
by the mainland China components following the disposal of the bridges
and tunnels in Shanghat in mid-2003.

HED M
Geographical Distribution

HEZZETOERAB=TBIEAEA
Six months ended 30 June 2004

—EEMERA=TALE
As at 30 June 2004

BFIER % EEEEEY
t Contribution % Assets at-Book Value %
ERFAFTEE Hong Kong SAR {7 & Mainland China /85N Overseas
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Interest Expense
The Group’s interest expense decreased from HK$215 million to HK$163

million mainly due to a decrease in borrowing cost.

Amortisation

Accounting standards require certain adjustments that are unrelated to

the cashflow of our businesses. Goodwill - the amount paid for buying a
business that exceeds the value of its physical and identifiable assets - must
be amortised to the profit and loss account over its useful life not exceeding
20 years. In 2004, HK$110 million of goodwill was amortised to the profit and

loss account, a HK$11 million increase compared to the first half of 2003.

Taxation
Taxation increased from HK$219 million in 2003 to HK$284 million in
2004. The components of the taxation charge for the half year are set out

in Note 5 of the Interim Report.

Shareholders’ Returns

CITIC Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for which
it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its businesses
to provide returns on investment over their lives that will provide shareholders

with an adequate return on equity.




BRAET Earnings per Share

BE_FTFNEANEALZERANBEY  Earnings per share were HK$0.62 for the six months ended 2004, an
0.6270 - M_FF=FFAMZEMH0.19T  increase of 225% compared with HK$0.19 for the same period in 2003.
£F225% - ZMEEZEHTHRMBEKRH  The number of shares outstanding in the two years was substantially the
BE > WERAFALAFTBER LA - same so all the increases in earnings per share was attributable to the

increase in profit.
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BREREES Shareholders’ Funds per Share .

ZETMERNAZTHZERBRESES  Shareholders’ funds per share at 30 June 2004 was HK$17.7, the same as at
#W1770 B_FE=H+_A=+—H 31 December 2003.
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EREERS Dividend per Share
TERTNEZEFERTHRELERET  Aninterim dividend of HKS$ 0.30 per share is proposed for 2004, the same
0307 BT E=ER BT EMA - as in 2003 and 2002.

BREER
Dividend per Share

JEIETT HKS

2.00

T ERRE & Interim Dividend

1030

FEAAR & Final Dividend

© 6/04

14557188 2. Special Dividend
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Turnover

The largest component of Turnover is the sale of goods and services, but
other items such as sales of assets are included. Only the turnover from
businesses included as Consolidated Activities is reported ~ they
contributed HK$969 million to the net profit before taxation - turnover in

jointly controlled or associated companies is not reported.

Marketing & Distribution turnover increased 5% in the six months ended
30 June 2004 compared with the same period in 2003. Motor trading
turnover increased 9%, other trading and distribution turnover increased
slightly by 1%. Special Steel Manufacturing turnover increased 53% mainly
due to increased sales price of special steel, while communications turnover

decreased 5% mainly due to the decreased price of international calls.

Other turnover in 2003 included the sales of bridges, tunnels and a road in

Shanghai at a consideration of HK$6.2 billion.

BEEE
Turnover
FBEIR 1B T HKS biflion
30 -
25 -
20- -
@
] 2
15— 1 o
[ 1 £
I c
]
10~ €
X
)
&
5- #
=
o li - <
00 01 02 083

B8 Power Generation

W E§E585E Civil Infrastructure
m CI {2 2% Communications

. T8 R 588 Marketing & Distribution

1% Property

C &M% Rk E i Special Steel Manufacturing & Others
6/03 6/04

HEETE Sale of Businesses
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Capital Expenditure
Investment in the power sector included the acquisition of an additional
indirect interest of 8.7% in Ligang Power Station, an additional 20%

interest in Fengtai Power Plant, and 20% of North United Power.

In the Special Steel Manufacturing sector, the acquisition of additional
interests in the Jiangyin Steel Plant described in an announcement dated

19 January 2004 was completed late in the first half of 2004.

The Air China Cargo joint venture began operation in January, while

property developments in Shanghai are continuing.

An additional capital contribution to CITIC Capital Markets was made
in ‘Other Sectors’. In 2003 an investment was made in a pharmaceutical

project.

Marketing and Distribution purchased additional vehicles to expand its

motor leasing business in both periods.

In the Civil Infrastructure sector, an investment was made in a waste

treatment plant in Shanghai.

As at 30 June 2004, the Group’s contracted capital commitments were

AR R+ E T HKS$ 4.8 billion.

EXEX Capital Expenditure

EETET HKS million 1-6/2004 1-12/2003
BE Power Generation 1,184 144
FEMEE Special Steel Manufacturing 1,038 537
= Aviation 518 -
W% Property 511 104
Hto%® Other Sectors 269 105
B Communications 134 185
HERDHE Marketing & Distribution 86 211
EREE Civil Infrastructure 50 5
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Group Liguidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

The Group’s policy is to maintain a high degree of financial control and
transparency. Financing and cash management activities are centralised at
head office level to enhance risk management, control and the best

utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

Funding sources are diversified through utilisation of both the banking
and capital market. To the extent it is possible, financings are arranged to
match business characteristics and cash flows. Limited or non-recourse

project finance is employed when it is available and appropriate.

CITIC Pacific conducts business mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China, therefore is subject to market risk in the foreign exchange rate of
the HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure,
non Hong Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same currency as
the asset or cash flow from it, either by borrowing or using foreign exchange
contracts. Achieving this objective is not always possible due to limitation
in financial markets and regulatory constraints, particularly on investment
into mainland China as currently, the Renminbi is not a free convertible
currency and an on-shore forward market has not been developed. In
addition, ‘Registered Capital’, which is usually accounted for no less thap
25% of the total project investment amount, is required to be paid in US or
HK Dollars. As a result, CITIC Pacific has an increasing exposure to the
Renminbi. As of 30 June 2004, around 29% of the Group’s assets were based in
mainland China.

The Group aims to maintain a suitable mixture of fixed rate / floating rate
borrowings in order to stabilise interest costs despite rate movements.
Interest rate hedging ratio is determined after taking into consideration of the
general market trend, the Group’s cash flow pattern and interest coverage
ratio. The Group actively employs interest rate swap transactions to manage

long term interest risk.
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The Company only uses derivative transactions for interest rate and
currency hedging purposes, speculative trading is prohibited. Counterparties’
credit risks are carefully reviewed. In general, the Company only deals with
financial institutions with credit rating of single A or above. The
counterparties’ lending exposure to the Group is also an important

consideration as a means to control credit risk.

Cash Flow

By design, most of the Group’s debt is raised at the holding company level. As
such, the net amount of cash flow from each business to the Company is an
important indicator as to the Company’s ability to service its debts. During
the period, the Group’s cash flow remained stable and strong. Following is a

summary of the cash contribution by each business segment for the period:

HZNA=Z+BIE~EAR
For the six months ended 30 June

BESET HKS million 2004 2003
HEEE#% Infrastructure

S Power Generation 148 185
R Civil Infrastructure 180 158
B Communications 49 153
iz Aviation 428 268
¥ Property 525 529
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 39 62
|F Total 1,369 1,355
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Cash Fiow from Operations Cash Flow per Share
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COEARRER Infrastructure C O EHEm S R A CORERRAZERESRE
Special Steel Manufacturing & Others From Regutar Cash Flow per Share
W EERAH
Marketing & Distribution T & %755 Sale of Businesses B HEEH SRS RE
From Cash Flow per Share from the Sale of Businesses
C_ )% Property
EEZXA=+HIE~EA
FeBREREHE Consolidated Cash Flow Summary For the six months ended 30 June
EEEET HK$ milion 2004 2003
BeFERa/ (1BER) Net Cash generated from / (invested in)
REEK consolidated activities (79) 908
HEZHESR jointly controlled entities (1,092) (85)
ER=/NE| associated companies 50 (357)
®E investments (66) 324
HEXBESEREEEN Sale of business interests and marketable securities 2 210
BERARIRRIERZRE Capital expenditure and investment in new businesses (1,435) (360)
1A Tax (97) (23)
2ENFESE Net interest paid (166) (221)
(2,883) 396
BEEMAIRE Dividends paid (1,533) (3,720)
BEE M increase in borrowings 2,024 2,445
BiT{EMERE Share options exercised 30 -
521 (1,275)
ReRERRE AL Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,362) (879)
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Group Debt and Liquidity

As of 30 June 2004, the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$12.9 billion
(31 December 2003: HK$10.5 billion), cash and deposits with banks were
HK$3.2 billion giving a net debt of HK$9.7 billion compared to HK$5
billion at 31 December 2003. Leverage, measured by the net debt to total
capital, was 20% (31 December 2003: 11%). The increase in net debt was
mainly due to the new investments in power plants, air cargo, special steel

manufacturing and residential property development.

Total Debt

Total debt increased due to new investments as mentioned above. The debt
at 30 June 2004 that will be mature upto end of 2005 amounted to 11% of the
total debt and at that date the Group had deposits with banks of HK$3.2

billion exceeding the loans due for repayment in second half of 2004.

SEHE
Total Debt
JBHEL (BT HKS billion
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T 1 —% A In the first year
B REA Inthe second year

CO=Z15RN (BEERME)
In the third to fifth year inclusive

FF1% After fifth year
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RZFFMERA=Z+TH EE®EMPI  The denomination of the Group’s borrowings before and after currency
EALEBMZEEABR S RERGEHZWE  swaps as well as cash and deposit balances in various currencies as of

T 30 June 2004 were summarised as follows:
HE Denomination

BT ES ARE BEHE Hip @t
BEGETEE HKE miltion Equivalent HK$ Uss$ Renminbi Yen Other Total
RABBZIER Borrowings in original currency 7,035 4,492 555 577 201 | 12,860
EEEHEZEER Borrowings after Currency Swaps 8,933 2,594 555 577 201 | 12,860
RERFHR Cash and Deposits 394 1,667 831 236 22 3,150
BEHEZEE GRE) B%E Net Borrowings (Cash) after Swaps 8,539 927 (276) 341 179 9,710

o> HEREFATRMETERATEZ  Inaddition, the Company entered into currency forward / option

SMNEEE/ BESHTH - contracts as described under ‘Derivative Products’.
HERARMERR Available Scurces of Financing

RZFFNEARA=+E > EREBEMKE  As of 30 June 2004, the Group’s undrawn available facilities consists of
Rz@REEY - #% -t ABTA%AE  HK$7.5billion in committed long term loans and HK$1.5 billion of
ZREER B THETAERMERESR  money market lines. In addition, available trade facilities amounted

W MEETETAUAMARSERE . 0 HKSLObillion.

EEBH FEERH BRER
BEBET HKS$ million Total Facilities Outstandings Available Facilities
BARRER Committed Facilities
RITER Bank Loans 15,486 7,976 7,510
2HESH Global Bonds 3,510 3,510 -
MAERE Private Placement 780 780 -
BEREEH Total Committed 19,776 12,2686 7,510
KEEFEER Uncommitted Facilities
EETiZEHE Money Market Lines 2,051 587 1,464
B EER Trade Facilities 2,506 . 565 1,841
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Maturity Profile of Outstanding Delbt
The Group actively manages and extends its debt maturity profile to ensure
that the Group’s maturing debt each year will not-exceed the anticipated

cash flow and the Group’s ability to refinance the debt in that year:

2009 &

EBERT BUE A EAE

2009 and
HKS mitlion 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Beyond Total Percentage
(SN
Parent Company’ 184 20 1,869 2,687 2,965 3,510 11,305 88%
8= NE]|
Supsidiaries 573 552 252 115 63 - 1,655 12%
BEMER
Maturing Debt 757 642 2,121 2,802 3,028 3,510 12,860 100%
BoX
Percentage 6% 5% 16% 22% 24% 27%  100%

1 BE-RERBTENTGRLZ AN BRFFE
FTRENELITEETZ 2IES -

MEMRO— I
LTRAEEAR _FTNEAA=Z+RZERE
Brip BRI~ AR - BIE G U REES T

1. Including a US$450 miflion global bond which was issued by a wholly owned
special purposes vehicle.

Financial Position at a Glance
The charts below show the type, interest rate, maturity and currency

profiles of borrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2004:

HMARAZEER
Available Facilities by Type

EREBEHE—FENE-_TET
Total HK$10.92 billion

69% 13% 18%

I EHR Term Loan W TS Money Market & 5 Trade
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FEBRE
Outstanding Debt by Type

AEHBE-—F=FN\EATFET S . -
Total HK$12.86 billion 62% 27% 6% 5%

T B HE Term Loan &% Bond

=1 L AELE Private Placement EHETTI% Money Market

REBESEZREEAE
QOutstanding Debt by Currency

55% 35% 4% 6%

C O TiEE HKD Loan ETTEE USD Loan

AR EE RMB Loan O Efth ¥ & B E Other Currency Loans

REDEHIEZ2AHESR
Outstanding Debt by Maturity

6% 5% 62% 271%

2004 EEE 2005

712006102008 [ 20094 A 2009 & Beyond

FIRGHEE (BBE—F)

Interest Rate Base (Over One Year)

EITHKD

18% 82%
£57USD |

54% 46%

Fi B &% Al Currencies r
28%% 71%

[ [EI5E Fixed 28 Floating
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Financial Guarantees and Pledged Asseis

The aggregate amount of guarantees given by the Company and its

subsidiaries which were not included in consolidated borrowings was

approximately HK$674 million as of 30 June 2004, primarily related to a

guarantee to support CITIC Pacific’s share of the loan facilities at Jilin

Power Station.

As at 30 June 2004, assets of HK$79 million were pledged to secure

banking facilities utilised by subsidiaries, mainly related to Dah Chong

Hong’s trading business overseas.

Debt / Cash in Jointly Controlied Entities and
Associated Companies

For accounting purposes, some of the Group’s businesses are classified as

jointly controlled entities and associated companies. The following table

shows the debt / cash position of jointly controlled entities and associated

companies as of 30 June 2004 which under Hong Kong generally accepted

accounting standards is not consolidated into the Group’s accounts.

HREEE/
(B&)

TEREEE
ZEEEFHE/ (R

Proportion of Net Debt/

BHERERANEB
RAERZAE
Amount of debt

guaranteed by

E(B5E Business Sector Total Net Debt/ (Cashy attributable CITIC Pacific or
BEEET HKS miltion (Cash) to CITIC Pacific its subsidiaries
BEEXER Infrastructure
BE Power Generation 2,443 1,198 657
B Civil Infrastructure 2,804 1,070
- Communications 1,000 617
iz Aviation 13,945 3,387
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 741 372
M Property (338) (126)
Hit Others (897) (449)
19,798 6,069 657
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Festival Walk and Discovery Bay are financed by their shareholders and
do not have external borrowings; other associated companies and jointly
controlled entities raise debt to finance their operational activities without
recourse to their shareholders, except for Jilin Power Station as declared

under Financial Guarantees and shown in the above table.

Derivative Products
CITIC Pacific employs a combination of financial instruments, including
derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and

currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest
rate characteristics of its borrowings. As of 30 June 2004, the Company
had outstanding interest rate swap / option contracts with a notional
amount of HK$8.5 billion. After the swaps, effectively HK$9.0 billion or
70% of the Group’s total borrowings were paying floating rate and the

remaining were effectively paying fixed rate of interest.

The overall weighted average all-in cost of debt (including fees and
hedging costs) for the six months ended 30 June 2004 was about 3.4%,

compared with 4.6% for the same period last year.

The underlying cash flow of the Group’s businesses is mainly in HK
dollars or in Renminbi. To minimise potential US dollar debt and interest
exposures, the Company entered into foreign exchange swap, forward and
option contracts. As of 30 June 2004, such contracts outstanding

amounted to US$570 million.

The Company also entered into Renminbi Non Deliverable Forward or
known as ‘NDF’ contracts for purpose of hedging the projected dividend
receivable from various projects in the mainland. These dividends are
originally denominated in Renminbi and required to be converted to
USD at time of the payment. As of 30 June 2004, total outstanding NDF

contracts amounted to US$35 million.
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REANFZHERBEEEZESMEBMEE  Based on the Company’s calculation and / or the mark to market price
Rz ERETR  RIFZTMEANA=ZT quotation obtained from major financial institutions, the aggregate fair
H £EE2FMETIERS 2 A TEEBE  value of all the outstanding derivative transactions as at 30 June 2004 was

HWAEHEE®—TLEET - approximately a positive value of HK$17 million.
BREER Contingent Liabilities
MZZZEMEAA=Z+TH - AEBZHRRA As at 30 June 2004, the Group’s contingent liabilities had not changed
BEHEZFRELRITEEREE - significantly from the last year end.
BRI ®E Leverage
ROBEZFNESAZTH: BESHEGEAR  Net debt divided by total capital was 20% at 30 June 2004 compared with
BE20% M_FE=FRENH11% 11% at the end of 2003.
BRE®
Leverage

JEHIR B T HKS billion

60

50

40
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22% 209 20%

20 19%
[}
14% 1%

il & 75485 Total Capital

99 00 01 02 03 6/04 B EFEIEEREEY% Not Debt/ Total Capital %

B & 5F % Net Debt
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IR Interest Cover
BE_ZZWFEAA=Z+THIEAMEE > A2 esrroa divided by interest expense for the six months ended 30 June 2004
ERIEd - BE - FELSBEZENFHE  was 15.1 compared to 6.3 in the same period in 2003, due to the 225%
BRUFMEXHB15.1 - M_FF=ZFFMA  increase in profit and a 24% decrease of total interest expenses.

6.3 A REA EF225% » KAEZH
BEED24%

FEEH

|nterest Cover

FEEIL (BT HKS billion

15x

99 00 01 02 03 6/04°

ER ARSI - HIE - EREHEZAFEE EBITDA

COFEEMNEEd - BE  AEREEZENFEGFIE T (x= &)
EBITDA/Interest Expense (x = times)

CIF S Interest Expense
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Loan Covenants

Over the years, CITIC Pacific has developed a set of standard loan covenants
to facilitate the management of its loan portfolio and debt compliance. The
financial covenants are generally limited to minimum net worth undertaking;
a maximum ratio of total borrowings to net worth and a limit on the
amount of pledged assets as a percentage of the Group’s total assets. As at

30 June 2004, CITIC Pacific is in compliance with all of its loan covenants.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned an investment grade foreign currency
long term credit rating of Baa3 by Moody’s Investor Service and BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s. For both ratings, the current credit outlook is stable,
reflecting CITIC Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage,
diversified business and strong cashflow. The Group’s leverage, measured
by the net debt to total capital, was 20%. Interest cover, defined as EBITDA
divided by interest expense, was 15.1 for the six months ended 30 June
2004. We believe that these financial indicators demonstrated the Group’s
financial strength. The Company’s objective is to maintain its financial

discipline aiming to improve its credit rating going forward.

Forward Locking Statements

This Interim Report contains certain forward looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of the
Group. These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results, performance
or events to differ materially from those expressed or implied in such

statements.

Forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.
Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual
results to differ, in some instances materially, from those anticipated or

implied in any forward looking statement.
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The headcount of the Group increased by 3.6%, from 12,174 at the end of
December 2003 to 12,611 at the end of June 2004. The number of employees
in the mainland reached a new high of 8,376 as the Group continues to
step up its development and investment in China. The headcount in

Hong Kong and the rest of the world remains stable at 4,000 and 235
respectively. The total staff cost for the six months ended 30 June 2004 was
HK$676 million.

As reported previously, the efficiency enhancement measures undertaken by
the Group in the last few years have brought new focus on cost management
and performance achievement. With the recovery of trading conditions in
the region after the SARS outbreak, the Group is aware of the renewed

demand on manpower in several industries and is reacting appropriately.

CITIC Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organizational environment
for individual’s development. With the ever growing cross-border business
activities between Hong Kong and the mainland, the Group encourages
and is actively promoting business integration, knowledge sharing and
skills transfer between staff in the two territories. In addition to providing
job-related training and development programmes aimed at helping employees
improve work performance and preparing for future development, the
Group also organizes and encourages staff to participate in wellness/fitness

activities that are conducive to good health and well-being.

In the latter half of every year, CITIC Pacific conducts reviews on the terms
and conditions of employment to ensure that the overall compensation and
benefits offered to staff are internally equitable and externally compatible
with major employers. Market data, along with industry practices and
emerging trends, are taken into consideration when formulating related
staff programmes. The Group will continue to ensure that its compensation
policies are reflective of individual performance. No major amendment to
human resource management policy or procedure has been executed in

the last 6 months.

CITIC Pacific and its staff continue to support charitable work and the
promotion of education, environmental protection, sports, culture and the
arts by sponsorship and participation in related activities in Hong Kong,
the mainland and overseas countries.
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CITIC Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate governance
and a full description of the operation of the Board, system of internal
control, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Codes and financial

reporting may be found on page 55 of the 2003 Annual Report.

The Board currently comprises ten executive and six non-executive
directors of whom four are ‘independent’ under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the ‘Listing Rules’).

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Interim Report with management
and the Company’s internal and external auditors and recommended its
adoption by the Board. The Audit Committee is consisted of two independent
non-executive directors, Messrs. Alexander Reid Hamilton (Chairman) and
Hansen Loh Chung Hon and one non-executive director, Mr Willie Chang,
The Committee members possess diversified industrial and professional

experience including that of accounting and finance.

The Interim Accounts, which are prepared in accordance with ssap 25
‘Interim Financial Reporting’, have been reviewed by the Company’s
independent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers in accordance with the
Auditing Standard sas 700 ‘Engagements To Review Interim Financial
Reports’ except that the scope did not extend to the results of the listed

assoctated company, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the six months
ended 30 June 2004.

Throughout the period, the Company was in compliance with the Code of

Best Practice contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Headquarters and Registered Office

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

Website
www.citicpacific.com contains a description of CITIC Pacific’s business,
copies of both the full and summary financial reports to shareholders,

announcements, press releases and other information.

Stock Codes

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267
Bloomberg: 267 HK

Reuters: 0267. HK

American Depositary Receipts: CTPCY
CUSIP Reference No: 17304K102

Share Registrars

Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters such as transfer

of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share certificates.

Annual and Interim Reports
Shareholders may obtain printed copies of annual and interim reports from
the Registrars. Others should contact the Company Secretary on 2820 2111

or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com for a printed report.

Investor Relations
Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 or at

investor.relations@citicpacific.com.

Financial Calendar
Closure of Register: 13 September 2004 to 17 September 2004
Interim Dividend payable: 22 September 2004 '
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HEEeHEHRE
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

HEANAZ=ZTH LA —REFEH for the six months ended 30 June - unaudited

i

KEEETETHE in HK$ miftion Note 2004 2003
B¥EE Turnover 10,872 15,695
REEBEBFN Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 1,075 1,025
FERFNEEE Share of Profits Less Losses of

HEZHER Jointly Controlled Entities 170 148

3 BN Associated Companies 730 (239)
MRXIEERE Net Finance Charges 4 (110) {184}
B AT 328 Profit before Taxation 1,865 750
BE Taxation 5 (284) (219)
BR B % F Profit after Taxation 1,581 ' 531
DY REERS Minority Interests (218) (112)
BERELRR Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,363 419
B2 Dividends 6

BETHERS Interim Dividend Proposed (657) (657)
BRBIN(BER) Earnings per Share (HK$) 7

BEXx Basic 0.622 0.191

BE Diluted 0.622 N/A
SRERE (B¥r) Dividend per Share (HKS)

o #5 Interim 0.30 0.30
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FEBEH BE%
—eens —gp=s
B 3 XA=+8 +=ZA=+—H
Unaudited Audited
HESGBLHE in HK$ million Note 30 June 2004 31 December 2003
EERE Fixed Assets 16,307 15,526
HEEHER Jointly Controlled Entities 5,330 4,085
BE LT Associated Companies 23,678 22,805
RE Investments 1,060 1,027
3 Goodwill o1 223
BEBREEE Deferred Tax Assets 88 85
RBEE Current Assets
FEME Properties held for sale 335 336
FES Inventories 2,274 1,880
FEMWARIE - EUYRR - RS Debtors, accounts receivable,
RBRIE deposits and prepayments 8 5,158 4,248
RERRITER Cash and bank deposits 3,150 5,511
10,917 11,975
RBAE Current Liabilities
BITER  HUERREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
B secured 73 49
SRR unsecured 827 826
JETRRIE - ENERR - R Creditars, accounts payable,
B REHIE deposits and accruals 8 3,804 3,912
AR Provision for taxation 141 108
4,845 4,895
RBEERE Net Current Assets 6,072 7,080
RELERNBAR Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 52,626 50,831
RHMER Long Term Borrowings (11,960) (9,653)
BEHAAE Deferred Tax Liabilities (323) (825)
40,343 40,853
B2 R Financed by
[::2:3 Share Capital 876 875
R Reserves 37,250 36,419
B2ERE Proposed Dividend 657 1,532
BEES Shareholders’ Funds 38,783 38,826
PEREER Minority Interests 1,560 2,027
40,343 40,853
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HENAZT B ILAEA—KEBEFH for the six months ended 30 June - unaudited

WEEEETHE in HK$ million 2004 2003

REERZRERE Cash Flows from Consolidated Activities

MEHEZTHRBEEZFEERSF  Profit from Consolidated Activities after Net Finance Charges 965 841

MERFHE Net interest expense 98 173~
RBIRE W Income from investments (217) (177}
FEREH Depreciation & amortisation 330 296

BBEH Amortisation of goodwill 7 5

HEETEELEE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 15 -
BEEEEZRE Impairment loss of fixed assets 9 -

LEWNBRRZHEF Profit on disposal of subsidiary company - @)
HEREZEF Profit on disposal of investments - {325)
R EEBELES B ZIBERF Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,207 811

FEEMN increase in inventories (256) (66)
FEWERTE - BUWER - Z2 R Increase in debtors, accounts receivable,

TR FIEE N deposits and prepayments (791) (473)
LHERERD Decrease in listed investments - 1
FEIERTE - EAEHR - BER (Decrease) / increase in creditors, accounts payable,

FERTRIB (R / 8n deposits and accruals (251) 635
IEERFE Effect of foreign exchange rates 12 -
FERBELZERES Cash Generated from Consolidated Activities (79) 908
SR ENSS Interest received 36 13
ERME Interest paid (202) (234)
BETEH Income taxes paid (97) (23)
REEXECREEE Net Cash from Consolidated Activities (342) 664
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LBEEBETE in HK$ million 2004 2003
AREREERZRSRE Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
BEAKB AR Purchase of subsidiary company 34 8
BAMBLREZEZEM Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiary company (383) -
BABETEE Purchase of fixed assets (1,108) {381)
RERZHTEZRE Investment in jointly controlled entities (1,053) (94)
REBELRIZRE Investment in associated companies (846) -
HEBRTEEMG Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 17 21
VERE G Proceeds on disposal of investments 2 188
HEMBL® Disposal of subsidiary companies - 14
ETHAEHNEEZEFEN Increase in loans to jointly controlled entities (60) -
Bz (En)/ R (Increase) / decrease in investments (80) 181
HTHERAZEIRL / (Em) Decrease / (increase) in loans to associated companies 302 (720)
UEEDTZRBWEA Dividend income from associated companies 594 363
HERERTEREZBERA Dividend income from jointly controlled entities 21 9
IEERIREFBRE Income from investments 14 143
BREEBER RS FTE Net Cash used in Investing Activities (2,541) (268)
REREZAERR Cash Flows from Financing Activities
BITRRAD Issues of shares 30 -
FiEEE New borrowings 2,860 2,795
HEER Repayment of loans (644) (323)
LEBREERZR S Decrease in minority interests (192) (27)
2R A Dividend paid (1,533) (3,720)
RE/ (AR BEBZRSEH Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities 521 (1,275)
REBERRETAEL PE Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents {2,362) 879)
E—A—-BzRSRERRS Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 5,469 2,513
NEERRBIHE Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes - 2)
EARAZ+TAZBEEEERE Cash and Cash Equivalents at 30 June 3,107 1,632
RAERZEARSEF2 T Analysis of the Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents
BeERBITTFER Cash and bank deposits 3,150 1,650
RITEX Bank overdrafts (43) (18)
3,107 1,632
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MAMBEE R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEANAZTHIEAEE —REFEH for the six months ended 30 June - unaudited

BN EETTE in HK$ million 2004 2003
~A—H At 1 January 38,826 42,638
FiaBE QaRRE Share of Reserve of Associated Company 86 (116)
NEREZH Exchange Translation Differences 11 2
HEEE Reserves Released - 2
ARGERBRBREBZUE/ Net Gain / (Losses) Not Recognised in

(E518) 28 the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 97 (112)
BREARR Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,363 419
RE Dividends (1,533) (3,720)
ST EERE Share Options Exercised
B KU 8 Premium received 29 -
2BITRA Share capital issued 1 -

38,783 39,125
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Notes to the Accounts

1T EEERHER
AMUIREECE S FHRE ((ARB D
TRBEEETMAGREMZFR G
AR ([ FEGFTER]) B255 T +4
MBS LRFEHEX L ARAFE
EHRRIM I HERH

AEEBEE-FEZEZR2EEE — i
EER

RUARABFEAZEFER > BAREE
CEEEZF+ AT -HEFEZRE
BREETRAE B

1 Significant Accounting Policies

These condensed unaudited consolidated interim accounts (‘the
Accounts’j are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statement

of Standard Accounting Practice (‘ssaP’) No. 25 ‘Interim Financial
Reporting’ issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Accounts should be read in conjunction with the 2003 annual

accounts.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the Accounts are
consistent with those used in the annual accounts for the year ended

31 December 2003.
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2EXBROEEBERN 2 Turnover and Segment Information

DTASREEXH B ZIEEEEBEER  An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit from consolidated activities
P B EA A S RB RS LR before net finance charges and share of profits less losses before taxation of
FrIE AR ZEH B8 RBE A ABRBEAEMNB  jointly controlled entities and associated companies by principal activities

B - are as follows:
ik £ Frik
BE-—@BNREAA=+ALNER RE EHIEE  BEQR S S8
HENBETHE HERW T BEAAEAER HMEREBE SEB4 EBOE  EBET
Share of Share of
Profits Less Profits
Losses of Less
Profit from Jointly  Losses of
Six months ended 30 June 2004 Consolidated Controlled  Associated Group Segment Segment
in HK$ million Turnover Activities Entities Companies Total  Allocations Profit
BEELES
By principal activity
BEEER
Infrastructure
Power Generation 214 173 4 27 204 - 204
IEY=%
Communications 736 56 49 32 137 - 137
iz
Aviation - - 17 518 535 - ' 535
Civil Infrastructure 260 161 46 35 242 -~ 242
BEAEE
Special Steel Manufacturing 3,206 439 - - 439 - 439
HERSTH
Marketing & Distribution 6,092 206 14 4 224 (36) 188
/-3 .
Property 230 182 - 114 296 36 332
Hib
Others 134 20 40 - 60 - 60
B —RRITEREA
Less: General & Administration Expenses - (162} - - (162) - (162)
10,872 1,075 170 730 1,975 - 1,975
MBI LHFE
Net Finance Charges (110)
Bg
Taxation . (284)
BRE&EF
Profit after Taxation 1,581

36




2ERERDEEBER 2

2 Turnover and Segment information continued

FriE #£[E Frih
BE-_FET=F,"B=+HIL~MEEA RE& EHIEE  BmELR AHE DR
WBEBBTHE EER EXEY RN ERRER HFRESR Bet X0 EBEN
Share of Share of
Profits Less Profits
Losses of Less
Profit from Jointly Losses of
Six months ended 30 June 2003 Consolidated Controlled  Associated Group Segment Segment
in HK$ million Turnover Activities Entities Companies Total  Allocations Profit
BEEEZEBESHN
By principal activity
2ERER
Infrastructure
B2E
Power Generation 138 131 16 - 147 - 147
B
Communications 773 42 55 4 138 - 138
Mz ,
Aviation - - - (405) (405) - (405)
Civil Infrastructure 6,413 465 31 34 530 - 530
HEEGE
Special Steel Manufacturing 2,092 168 - - 168 - 168
BHERSH .
Marketing & Distribution 5778 181 9 4 194 (38) 156
ek '
Property 205 168 - 87 255 38 293
Hfte
Others 296 36 37 - 73 - 73
B —RBRETBREAR
Less: General & Administration Expenses - (166) - - (166) - (166)
15,695 1,025 148 (239) 934 - 834
M HEE
Net Finance Charges (184)
BE
Taxation (219)
BREBL BB R
Profit after Taxation 531
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2 Turnover and Segment Information continued

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows:

BEEANA=+HLESEAR
Six months ended 30 June

UE¥BETTHE in HK$ million 2004 2003

B (R 1 5 A By geographical area

Epe Hong Kong 3,649 3,665

& Mainland China ) 6,599 11,513

B Japan 226 189

Hith Others 398 328
10,872 15,695

3 SeXBEACIHARME

3 The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at after crediting and

charging:

BERNA=ZTHLHREAR

Six months ended 30 June
HKEMEETHE in HK$ million 2004 2003
RERBRA Dividend income from investments 214 143
BERBFEFE Net gain from investments - 323
BEEFHEMAR Cost of inventories sold 7,659 6,565
NERESE Depreciation and amortisation 330 286
B Goodwill amortisation 7 4

4 MEILEFREFEMNE U BER
—BAT=ZFELT (ZEZ=4F  B%_F
—TRHEHET) -
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4 Net finance charges included interest expense of HK$163 million

(2003: HK$215 million).




5 FHABHRBHARNGITRERBREFN LK 5 Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the
B17.5% (ZFF =4 1 17.5%) 78 - B estimated assessable profit for the period. Overseas taxation is calculated
HMEBRAURBH R AT ERBEA > BEASE  on the estimated assessable profit for the period at the rates of taxation
BRBEEFRRENBRZBEFE - BB prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Tax provisions are
BEERE LR > URBRES - BEIK  reviewed regularly to take into account changes in legislation, practice and

MRIMER B - FHEMT status of negotiations. Detailed as follows:
ZXRA=t+8EREAR
Six months ended 30 June
WENBETHE in HK$ million ‘ 2004 2003
FREIRMERF] Company and subsidiary companies
EEMEH Hong Kong profits tax 61 53
AR Overseas taxation 82 39
BERIE Deferred taxation (4) 9
139 101
HEFEHEE Jointly controlled entities
EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax 14 9
FANRIE Overseas taxation 16 29
BB IE Deferred taxation 6 3
36 33
ol PN v Associated companies
BEMEH Hong Kong profits tax 51 28 |
BN IE Overseas taxation 29 . 28
FRBIE Deferred taxation 29 29
109 85
284 219
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6 BRE

HKEEEETHE

6 Dividends
BENAZ+RHIESEAR
Six months ended 30 June
in HK$ million 2004 2008

ER-FFZFREAKRE - BREWBC.70T
(ZFTF : BB070T)

2003 Final dividend paid: HK$0.70
(2002: HK$0.70) per share 1,532 1,532

ER-_FF_FHIKRE  FREH1.00T

2002 Special dividend paid: HK$1.00
per share - 2,188

BE_ZTOFHERE  SRBEK030T
(Z2F=F : B¥0.307T)

2004 Interim dividend proposed: HK$0.30
(2003: HK$0.30) per share 657 657

7 BEREMERREBEGFERHZE
ANTZBET(ZET=ZF  BEWNE—T
NEET) &E -

BREBF TR B BTG Z T8
2,189,998,622f (ZFEE =4 : B #ITRH
2,188,460,1608) 515 - S E AT
$£2,191,283,820 Bt 0 ( BN A 2 B 4T B 5
Z T BB b 2 8 2 B A AT
1 W 45 E AR 7 1T 2 1,285,198 it
HZMEFHE) HE (CEF=F GRS
NEFMMBZBERECAESTERESR
B b EEREBESRAMNET) -
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7 The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$1,363 million (2003: HK$419 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number

of 2,189,998,622 shares in issue during the period (2003: 2,188,460,160
shares in issue). The diluted earnings per share is based on 2,191,283,820
shares which is the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
period plus the weighted average number of 1,285,198 shares deemed to
be issued at no consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised
(2003: No diluted earnings per share is presented as the exercise of all the
options outstanding during the period has no dilutive effect on the

earnings per share).




8.1 BUWERE » BUARS -

8.1 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

RERBEHTRE Prepayments
—22mE —ER=F
NA=1H +=ZB=+—8H
HENGE T E in HK$ million 30 June 2004 31 December 2003
BN EZERE Trade debtors
—FR Within 1 year 1,707 1,854
—FE AL Over 1 year 379 527
2,086 2,481
Hist Note:

) BURSERECEHEREE DFEEERERY
PEE -

i) BERECHRBARGERE TR EHHR -

8.2 BFtHRIR - BITRAREL

i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice

date.

ii) Each business units has a defined credit policy appropriate to its circumstances.

8.2 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits and

REREMNRE Accruals

—820nFE —EB=RF
NA=T+18 +=ZA=+—8”
UBEEETHE in HKS million 30 June 2004 31 December 2003

EITEBER Trade creditors
—FR Within 1 year 1,409 1,718
—FEY Over 1 year 268 354
1,677 2,072

9 ANRBREEHPX  KBHEFLHE

8 Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current

presentation.
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Auditors’ Independent Review Report
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To the Board of Directors of CITIC Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

introduction
We have been instructed by the company to review the interim financial

report set out on pages 30 to 41.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of an interim financial report
to be in compliance with ssAP 25 ‘Interim financial reporting’ issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the relevant provisions thereof.
The interim financial report is the responsibility of, and has been

approved by, the directors.

It is our responsibility to form an independent conclusion, based on our
review, on the interim financial report and to report our conclusion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Review Work Performed

We conducted our review in accordance with sas 700 ‘Engagements to
review interim financial reports’ issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, except that the scope of our review, as instructed by the

directors, did not extend to the results of an associated company, Cathay

. Pacific Airways Limited, whose results were equity accounted for by the

directors on the basis of its published interim financial information.
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BEANEMEm —FHEE
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HEAREMGAR  BRERETEAR
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REREELNEMETH > AFEEERE
AAERE=ZFMESAZ+ELAEA
B MM REELERETZEE -

BB R BUKIE & S A S
HEEGET
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A review consists principally of making enquiries of management and
applying analytical procedures to the interim financial report and based
thereon, assessing whether the accounting policies and presentation have
been consistently applied unless otherwise disclosed. A review excludes
audit procedures such as tests of controls and verification of assets,
liabilities and transactions. It is substantially less in scope than an

audit and therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an

audit. Accordingly we do not express an audit opinion on the interim

financial report.

Modified Review Conclusion Arising from Limitation

of Review Scope

On the basis of our review which does not constitute an audit, with the
exception of any modifications that might have been determined to be
necessary had the above limitation not existed, we are not aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the interim financial report

for the six months ended 30 June 2004.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 August 2004
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Statutory Disclosure
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Dividend and Closure of Register

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 (2003:
HK$0.30) per share for the year ending 31 December 2004 payable on
Wednesday, 22 September 2004 to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 17 September 2004.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
13 September 2004 to Friday, 17 September 2004, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfer will be effected. In order to qualify
for the interim dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis
Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,

56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than

4:30 p.m. on Friday, 10 September 2004.

Share Option Plan

Under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (‘the Plan’) adopted on
31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for options over the -
Company’s shares on payment of HK$1 per acceptance. The subscription
price determined by the Board will be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and

(iii} the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The maximum number of
shares over which options may be granted under the Plan shall not exceed
10% of (i) the issued share capital of the Company from time to time or
(ii) the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of adopting

the Plan, whichever is the lower.




EZEZZHERARAZTAE . ARQAREZ On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares
FHEIFE LA AR 11,550,000R & At in the Company (‘Share Options’) listed in the table below representing
Mz BIRE (THRE] GERTR) {5ER  0.53% of the then issued share capital, at the exercise price of HK$18.20
C8ITRAZ0.53% ITHBERAERER  per share, were granted under the Plan and all were accepted. The closing
18.207C - 2MEHEM - ALFARMARE  price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant was

15 4 PR B T 22 i (B A v 18.10TT o HKS$18.10. All options granted and accepted can be exercised in whole or
HEREREENZBRE - AR LEE  in part within 5 years from the date of grant. During the six months ended
B H IR AR 2 BE AT - WB 30 June 2004, Share Options in respect of a total of 1,650,000 shares in
FRTNFEARAZTHEREAR B K the Company were exercised at HK$18.20 per share. None were cancelled
1,650,000/ & A~ B ey 2 IR E T #AT - or lapsed during the period.

THEERERER18.207T - REIW - BEIT

B AR FE A S B B AR -

Ry EREEE HRREREYE
Number of Share Options Number of Share Options
at the beginning of the period at the end of the period

RRREBEE' Directors of the Company' 7,800,000 6,200,000

EREAHOREZES - Continuous Contract Employees 3,400,000 3,400,000

Hiw? Cthers® 350,000 300,000

= Total 11,550,000 9,900,000

liokz 2 Notes:

L REZE-_FEENFNA=ZFBUAEAR - BHEE 1. Mr Henry Fan Hung Ling has exercised all of his Share Options in respect of 1,600,000
SECITREASHHERE  #R1,600,00088F 12 7] shares in the Company during the six months ended 30 June 2004. The weighted
BRID - RRGIRGERERAETTRREBERERLE average closing price of the shares in the Company immediately before the date on
ZIEFIRTIERER21.455T - which his Share Options were exercised was HK$21.45.

o WEERBIDRFENBENTBZIES - ILER 2. Itis in respect of the options granted to former employees under continuous contract
#ER50,000BFAARGPERBE_EERF and the options in respect of 50,000 shares in the Company have been exercised
NAZTBUENEARTE - FRERGERETE during the six months ended 30 June 2004. The weighted average closing price of the
UERERRKE B HFTZ M TR T (B BAK 23.405T - shares in the Company immediately before the date on which such Share Options

were exercised was HK$23.40.
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EEZESER Directors’ Interests in Securities

E_EFZMEAA=Z1TH  REFHFRME  The interests of the Directors in shares of the Company or any associated
bl ([R5 R BRG] ]) H352REFRHE  corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
ZEREZMARLE  EFRALEHEM Ordinance (‘SFO’)) as at 30 June 2004 as recorded in the register required to
B EE (EEREEERAIBEXVE) be kept under section 352 of the SFO were as follows: A

Rz BT |

1. A2 7] B AR T o T T 1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation
ke a
Number of Shares
EFR HEBITRE
BAES EEEE EQi T BlER EpE
Personal Corporate Family Trusts and Percentage to the
interests interests interests  similar interests issued share capital
%

PEREERAT CITIC Pacific Limited

BER Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 18.281

SERE Henry Fan Hung Ling 44,600,000 . 2.036

HiEE Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 0.146

THE Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 ' 0.023

friac 2 Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 0.002

Y Liu Jifu 40,000 0.002

BEEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,060,000 500,000 500,000 , 0.071

=S André Desmarais 99,800 100,242,000 4.582

RiSem RS Peter Kruyt
(BEBREZ (alternate director to
BIEE) Mr André Desmarais) 2,100 0.0001

BRHEZERLT Cathay Pacific

Airways Limited

fEeEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 0.013

H5E - Notes:

1. BRETFIS500,000RBHEBR—HBEHEZERR 1. The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate each
REBEZRARE HEBEEREZ ZERHSA other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the relevant Director
REGEBER - and his family are interested.

2. EFFFEZ2100,242,00088 % F + 12,0008 73 2. Qut of 100,242,000 shares, 12,000 shares are held by a corporation controlled by the
BREIHEBEEL 2 EEFE - 71100,230,000 relevant Director and 100,230,000 shares are held indirectly by a corporation of which
BRIEE—RAEHEE TREFHETRERS the relevant Director is the President and Co-Chief Executive Officer.

EBEERE o
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2. Share Options in the Company

MARITEZ BRERE
Number of Outstanding

HEBRTREFES R
Percentage to the

BHE Directors Share Options issued share capital

%
415042 Larry Yung Chi Kin 2,000,000 0091
BRE Vernon Francis Moore 1,000,000 0.046
=R Peter Lee Chung Hing 1,000,000 0.046
g Norman Yuen Kee Tong 500,000 0.023
Logig Yao Jinrong 300,000 0.014
BiREA Chang Zhenming 500,000 0.023
a7 N Li Shilin 300,000 0.014
KRR Carl Yung Ming Jie 300,000 v 0.014
BlE= Liu Jifu 300,000 0.014

BREXFTHEES  EZFFNENAZS
B ARRSEEHELEE 0 ASCEMEE
Wzl - MERGEES TR - HER
R - B RAREE S RAERAEXV
WA R EZAIEERRE - NEHEA - #
RABREREFEERLELREALFRE
B MM BEROES2RETREZECER
MZ AR #E - R - AT IR
FHRARBELTHRUFTR ETARNEZET
95 2 By ) R <7 I o ZE08 0 A R R B
TR ZALtE R o

LB EEE S RREREAE > A2
ARAEMHBAREES TEMER > U
EAnmz ERFHEREF LS @R AE
2 BRI m# LR -

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2004, none of the Directors of the
Company had nor were they taken to or deemed to have, under Part XV of
the SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations or any interests
which are required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies

in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period was the Company
or any of its subsidiary companies a party or parties to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other

body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 30 June 2004, the interests of the substantial shareholders, other than

the Directors of the Company or their respective associate(s), in the shares

of the Company as recorded in the register of interests in shares and short

positions required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

KLOBZRIDHE
Number of Shares

EEBITRAESE
Percentage to the

EiE Name of the Company issued share capital

%
FEPEERANF CITIC Group 632,066,285 28.860
FE(FEEB)BRLB(HEEED CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CITIC HK") 632,066,285 28.860
Heedon Corporation Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 22.758
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.200

FEEEEATIZENBAR  MERA

CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through

RARMZ EERE the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:
TREESY EEBITRAE
40T Z BRI B BoR
Number of Shares of Percentage to the
FEEBZHBRAGER Name of Subsidiary Companies of CITIC HK HK$0.40 each issued share capital
) %
Affluence Limited Affluence Limited 43,266,000 1.976
Winton Corp. Winton Corp. 30,718,000 1.403
Westminster Investment Inc. Westminster Investment Inc. 101,860,000 4.655
Jetway Corp. Jetway Corp. 22,500,000 1.027
Cordia Corporation Cordia Corporation ' 32,258,064 1.478
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.200
Hainsworth Limited Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000 3.670
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 10,000,000 0.457
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Affluence Limited - Winton Corp.-
Westminster Investment Inc. - Jetway
Corp. » Cordia Corporation * Honpville
Corporation * Hainsworth Limited X
Southpoint Enterprises Inc.4 Al & % £ 8 &
WA Z A o H it - Honpville Corporation
BEAERTZEERK -

FEFEEEAFRATEEEZHEEERS
E o {5 % ¥# % Heedon Corporation

Hainsworth Limited  Affluence Limited &
Barnsley Investments Limited 2 B ##E A 23
] - Heedon Corporation % Winton Corp.-

Westminster Investment Inc. Jetway
Corp. * Kotron Company Ltd. & Honpville
CorporationZ H##E R A A ; Kotron
Company Ltd. % Cordia CorporationZ B
R A E o Barnsley Investments Limited
% Southpoint Enterprises Inc.2 H # # i
nE - B PEFFEBNREFRFAZ
o APEEEESLAIESRES -

FEHEEALFZEL  BER2HAHE
HERMEZREZHMBLARAEALAZ#A
& & - Heedon Corporationf 7 24 & Z
i BRER2RaAEERMEREZW
BLrRlEALAZERER - Barnsley
Investments Limited7EA A& 2 M4 > 5 E
HHAEERFAZHWB AR EARAFAZER
#E - Kotron Company Ltd. 7 4 4 & 2 #
o BETHEEEBAEZIMEBLAEERR
RZEEED -

Bx 7=

AR F W ERB AR RS - AL
B EL AL o S B 2 1 O S A R B el B A
R EARAE A

Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc.,
Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of the Company
beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Group is the direct holding company of CITIC HK. CITIC HK is the
direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited,
Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation
is the direct holding company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation and
Kotron Company Ltd. is the direct holding company of Cordia Corporation.
Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company of Southpoint
Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of CITIC Group in the Company
duplicate the interests of CITIC HK in the Company. The interests of CITIC
HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct
and indirect subsidiary companies as described above. The interests of
Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate the interests in the
Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. The interests of Barnsley Investments Limited in the Company
duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary company

as described above and the interests of Kotron Company Ltd. in the
Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary

company as described above.

Share Capital
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the period.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary companies has purchased

or sold any of the Company’s shares during the period.
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UEBEETHE

Continuing Disclosure Requirements under Rule 13.22
of the Listing Rules ,

The Company has obtained a waiver from the Stock Exchange under Rule
13.22 of the Listing Rules from disclosing a proforma combined balance
sheet of affiliated companies as defined therein. Instead, in accordance
with Rule 13.22, the Company discloses the following information, as an
alternative, in relation to the affiliated companies as at the end of the most
recent financial period reported on by the affiliated companies. This
information has been extracted from the relevant management accounts of

the affiliated companies.

IEFRE
RAZTH

in HK$ million 30 June 2004

BEBEBRABEREHRARERY

Total indebtedness reported by affiliated companies

B EEH as at the period end 28,117
EMEBEATREZHEE Financial assistance given to the affiliated companies that the Group
(FEERUHHEBEREELRBEFTA) and such amount has already been included in the above 7,873

REFZFNEAAZTR ARZHRTER
TEARLAERREEREASSHEERZH
TREMEEZMANBREEAECTEE
ET (EHREFABLITEEET MER
RARESN > WREARRTEAEERMY
B B 2 B R R Z B AR A R R
EMER AR -

R-FEWEAAZTHE AEEHECE
BB B B 2 B ) B S A T R R
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As at 30 June 2004, the Group has no contingent liability in respect of
guarantee given for facilities granted to the affiliated companies that the
Group has given financial assistance except for a several guarantee of
HK$674 million to support the Company’s share of the loan facilities at
Jilin Power Station of which HK$657 million was utilised.

As at 30 June 2004, the Group has no outstanding capital injection
commitment to the affiliated companies that the Group has given

financial assistance.
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Definition of Terms
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igEE

AEFEMEIE - BIEA
NERBEZBEAFER
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Terms
Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt
Net debt
Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ funds
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Shareholders’ funds + total debt

Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific Ltd. from its
subsidiary companies, jointly controlled entities,
associated companies and other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds
Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders’ funds + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

A business’s after tax profit that contributes to
unallocated central interest, overhead and goodwill

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ funds

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

Net debt
Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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Shareholders may at any time choose to receive the Interim Report in printed form or to rely on its version posted on the
Company’s website. Shareholders may change their choice by writing to the Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited at

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

If Shareholders have already chosen to rely on the version of the Interim Report posted on the Company’s website and have
difficulty in having access to it, they will, promptly upon request, be sent the Interim Report in printed form free of charge.

Please send the request to the Company’s Share Registrars.

Designed by Sedgwick Richardson
Printed on environmentally friendly paper
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